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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Ralph Waldo Emerson House stands southwest of Cambridge Turnpike
near its intersection with Lexington Road in Concord, Massachusetts.

The house was built in 1828-29 by John T. Coolidge for his son Charles.
Emerson purchased it, with some 2 acres of land, in 1835. He subse-
quently added to the property, bringing it to the current 9 acres.
Immediately to the rear of the house are a garden (maintained much as it
was in Emerson's day), the original wooden barn, and a small shed. The
remainder of the property, which reaches to Walden Street, is a sloping
meadow, through the center of which flows Mill Brook.

When Emerson purchased the 2-story frame and clapboard house, it con-

sisted of an L-shaped main block with hipped roof and a rear service wing
with pitched roof. 1In 1836, he added two rooms at the southwest corner of
the main block, giving it a square shape. The upper of those rooms, known

as the "Straw Carpet Chamber', was altered and enlarged (by the addition of

a bay window) in 1857. At the same time, another room, lighted by a shed
dormer, was created in the attic on the southwest side of the house. Named
"the den", it was intended as a work area for Emerson, though he rarely used
it. Entrances to the house are located at the center of the northeast (front)
and southeast elevations; each is covered by a l-story porch with Doric
columns and full entablature. Windows are 6/6 double-hung sash with louvered
blinds. ‘

The interior of the house follows a center hall plan with two large,

square rooms at either side. To the left of the front entrance are a

guest room, which Emerson called the "Pilgrim's Chamber'", and the dining room,
with the kitchen in the service wing beyond. To the right are Emerson's
study, in which the major part of his reading and writing was done, and the
parlor. On the second floor are four bedrooms; notable features of the
master bedroom are two alcoves reached through round-headed, keystoned arches.

The Emerson House was seriously damaged by a fire in July, 1872.

Starting in the attic, it destroyed the roof and much of the second floor.
Most of the contents of the house were saved, however, and funds subscribed
by Emerson's friends paid for a complete restoration of the building.

The Emerson House is now maintained in good condition. All of its rooms
remain as they were after the 1872-73 restoration except the study, whose
contents were removed to the Concord Antiquarian Society and replaced by
duplicate pieces about 1930.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This large but unpretensious frame house was the home of the noted

poet, essayist and philosopher Ralph Waldo Emerson from the time of his

second marriage in 1835 until his death in 1882. All of his major works,
including Nature (1836), "The American Scholar" (1837), the two volumes

of Essays (1841, 1844), Representative Men (1850), and English Traits (1856),
were prepared here. Though most famous during his lifetime as a lecturer,
Emerson 1s now best kncwn for his essays, most often adapted from his lectures,
which express his personal transcendental philosophy of an organic universe
predicated not only on the power of man to change things but on the goodness
of change itself.

The house, which Emerson purchased, had been constructed in 1828-29.

Seriously damaged by fire in 1872, it was immediately restored, largely by
private subscriptions from Emerson's friends. Following the deaths of
Emerson's wife and children, the last of them in 1930, the Ralph Waldo Emerson
Memorial Association was created to administer the property. The house is
furnished as it was during Emerson's lifetime with the exception of the

study, the original contents of which have been removed to the Concord
Antiquarian Society. The Emerson House is open to the public from April 15

to October 31, 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Saturday, 2 to 5 p.m. Sunday.

BIOGRAPHICAL SUMMARY

Ralph Waldo Emerson, born in Boston on May 25, 1803, was the descendant

of a long line of ministers. His father William, pastor of Boston's First
Church, died in 1811, leaving Emerson's mother to bring up five somns in
financial difficulty. 1In 1814, the family moved to Concord, where Emerson's
mother and his aunt, Mary Moody Emerson, raised the children with an eye to
the education and vocation dictated by their ancestry.

Emerson was sent to Boston Latin School and then, by means of scholarships
and part-time teaching, was able to attend Harvard College, graduating

in 1821. 1In order to save money for attending Harvard Divinity School and

to help pay for the education of his younger brothers, he taught for the

next four years in the girls' school established by his older brother William.
Emerson entered the Divinity School in 1825 and was licensed for the ministry
the following year. However, family circumstances and his own poor health

as well as financial difficulty delayed his career. 1In 1829, Emerson was
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ordained as minister of the Second Church in Boston. That same year, he
married Ellen Tucker of New Hampshire.

Though Emerson rapidly won a reputation for his eloquence in the pulpit,

he was unable to cope with routine pastoral demands and, more significantly,

began to repudiate the restricting character of Christianity in general,

which, in his view, failed to nuture the moral nature of man. Emerson's own sermons
were unusually free of traditional doctrine; he divested Christianity

of all external and historical supports, making its basis the individual's

private intuition of moral law and its test a life of virtue and character.

An opponent of all forms, he wanted a freer and larger sphere of influence

and, following his wife's death in 1831, abruptly resigned his pastorate.

In 1832 Emerson traveled to Europe where he became more closely acquainted
with the philosophy of German idealism and talked with Landor, Mill, Words-
worth, Coleridge, and Carlyle; his meeting with the latter led to a corres-
pondance which lasted almost forty years. At home again in 1833, he estab-
lished himself as a lyceum lecturer, beginning with courses in natural history
and biography. 1In 1834 he returned to Concord and the following year, in
preparation for his marriage to Lydia Jackson of Plymouth, Massachusetts,
purchased the house in which he would live for the rest of his life. There

he settled into a quiet domestic routine of writing in the morning, walking
alone in the afternoon, and talking with his family and friends in the evening--
a pattern interrupted only by travel and lecture engagements.

Emerson had begun in 1833 to work on an explanation of his personal
philosophy, which he published anonymously in 1836 in the form of a short
book entitled Nature; this was his essential statement and all of his
subsequent work was an extension, amplification or amendment of the ideas

it affirmed. The heart of Emerson's philosophy, as the title of his book
suggests, was the organic concept, a belief in a living nature still in

the process of becoming, a nature immanent with spirit, fulfilling the

ideas of God and also capable of fulfilling the ideas of man. In this Emersonian
conception, man was not estranged from nature, but intimate with her, sharing
the flow of her spiritual tides, and able, by means of his own creative powears
of perception, to grasp her law and, thereby, with his ideas, to be himself

a creator of the as-yet-unformed future. The essential and liberating idea

of Nature, to be applied in Emerson's later work to all aspects of human life,
was that by his own constitution and by the corresponding constitution of

the universe, man was not the victim of his environment. Mind, not matter,
was supreme. Ideas were sovereign,and with them as his instruments man could
shape the universe to his needs.



Form No. 10-300a 4 HATICUAL

~
HRARS

Ty T

Y

3
i

LANDHAEES

- wqﬁNth‘D STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES o
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTERE
CONTINUATION SHEET 2 ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 3

Emerson translated Nature into specific terms in 1837 with his Phi Beta

Kappa address at Harvard, "The American Scholar", which Oliver Wendell Holmes
called "our intellectual Declaration of Independence'". 1In that address,
Emerson described the duties and resources of the liberated intellectual in
America, who would fulfill his own genius by abandoning the traditional insti-
tutions of culture and in nature exploring the possibilities of his own new
world. 1In effect, he put the scholar above the priest, making him the ser-
vant of truth whose duty was the "conversion of the world".

In 1836, Emerson had been instrumental in forming the group known as

the Transcendental Club, which continued to meet regularly for discussion
until 1843; its members included Bronson Alcott, Orestes Bronson, Theodore
Parker, and James Freeman Clarke, and Henry David Thoreau was a frequent guest.
When the group began to publish its magazine, The Dial, under the editorship
of Margaret Fuller in July, 1840, Emerson became a major contributor. Between
1842 and the final appearance of The Dial in 1844, Emerson himself was its
editor,though he was far more interested in the poetry and metaphysics which
appeared in the magazine than in the practical aspects of the various reform
programs it proposed.

Emerson consolidated his reputation with the publication of his two series

of Essays in 1841, becoming for much of mid-century America the spokes-—

man for a new religion which squared with the times even while supplying a
method for criticizing them. In 1845 Emerson delivered the series of lectures
which he published in 1850 as Representative Men and the next year issued his
Poems. Though Emerson thought poetry the highest form of utterance and always
referred to himself as a poet, he did not publish another volume of verse
until 1867, when May-Day and Other Pieces appeared. On a lecture tour of
England in 1847, Emerson visited Carlyle again and met Macaulay, Thackeray,
Dickens, and Tenneyson; the trip provided the basis for a series of lectures
delivered the next season and published in 1856 as English Traits.

Emerson's chief occupation during the 1850's was politics. He had opposed
the annexation of Texas and the Fugitive-Slave Law and now filled his journal
with comments on the great issue rapidly dividing the country. He advocated
sending arms to the anti-slavery faction in Kansas, made a number of anti-
slavery speeches, and championed John Brown when the latter arrived at
Concord in 1857.

Emerson continued with his lecturing and, to some extent, his writing
after 1860 but, with the exception of May-Day, his work was marked by waning
powers. He acknowledged this in "Terwminus'", written in 1866: "It is time
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to be old/ To take in sail...Contract thy firament/ To compass of a tent".
When his home was seriously damaged by fire in July, 1872, James Russell
Lowell and other friends provided funds to make good the loss and to allow
Emerson a vacation while work on the house was completed. He visited Europe,
satisfied an old desire to see the Valley of the Nile, and then retired to
Concord where he spent his remaining years. Emerson attempted some further
writing--Letters and Social Aims was published in 1876, but only after James
Elliot Cabot had been called in to sort out the muddled manuscripts--but in

general he slid into a serene and dignified senility, which ended with his
death in April, 1882.

Following the deaths of Emerson's wife and children, the last of which
occurred in 1930, the Ralph Waldo Emerson Memorial Association was formed

to preserve the poet's house at Concord. Concern for the safety of the
contents of Emerson's study prompted their removal to the nearby headquarters
of the Concord Antiquarian Society. With that exception, the house and its
furnishings remain as they were after the restoration of 1872-73.
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Ralph Waldo Emerson House, Concord, Massachusetts

Verbal Boundary Description (continued)

lines of Parcel 242 to the southern curbline of Cambridge Turnpike; thence, along
said southern curbline to the point of beginning.



